
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA             ACADEMIC SENATE ●MERCED DIVISION  
  
 

Committee on Faculty Welfare, Diversity & Academic Freedom (FWDAF) 
Thursday, May 7, 2015 

3:00 pm – 5:00 pm, KL 362 
Documents found at UCMCROPS/FWDAF1415/Resources  

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 
I. Chancellor  Leland and Provost/EVC Peterson   30 mins. 

  Discussion:  FWDAF AY 14-15 updates 
 

II. Early Childhood Education Center – Professor Mayya Tokman 10 mins. 
 

III. Ombuds Updates – De Acker     10 mins. 
  Discussion:  AY 14-15 updates 

 
IV. Consent Calendar 

  Action Requested:  Approval of March 17 meeting minutes.  Pg. 1-7 
  

V. Chair’s Report -  Rudy Ortiz      10 mins. 
A. April 23 Meeting of the Division 
B. Draft Presidential Postdoctoral Fellow hiring plan     

   
VI. Systemwide Committee Updates      10 mins. 

A. March 5 UCAF meeting – Linda Cameron 
B. April 10 UCFW meeting – Sean Malloy 
C. April 16 UCAAD meeting – Rudy Ortiz 

 
VII. Vice Provost for Faculty and Advance Coordinator Updates 10 mins. 

 Gregg Camfield & Kahil Morales 
A. AY 15-16 faculty professional development workshop series topics 
B. MAPP revisions 

 
VIII. Campus Review Item      5 mins. Pg. 8-42 

A. UC Merced’s Review under the WSCUC Standards 
UC Merced initiated its efforts to re-affirm accreditation by WSCUC  which will conclude 
with an Accreditation Visit in spring 2018 and, in June 2018, the WSCUC Commission 
decision to re-affirm accreditation for a period of 6, 8 or 10 years.  The first step in the 
Institutional Review Process for re-affirmation is to complete, as an institution, the Review 
under the WSCUC Standards. All Senate standing committees are asked to review. 

1 
 

https://ucmcrops.ucmerced.edu/access/content/group/0af2db1f-068b-46ba-9fe6-3959a9482a82/


UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA             ACADEMIC SENATE ●MERCED DIVISION  
  

Action requested:  FWDAF to review the report and send any comments to the Senate chair 
by May 15. 
 

IX. Systemwide Review Item      5 mins. Pg. 43-52 
A. Proposed revisions to APM 210-D (Contributions to Diversity) 
Revisions to this section were proposed by an Academic Council working group consisting 
of the chairs of BOARS, UCAAD, UCAP, UCEP and the UCSD division, and endorsed 
unanimously by the Academic Council in February. While this is an informational item as 
final reviews are not expected to lead to additional substantive changes in the proposed 
policy, committees are still invited to opine. 
Action requested:  FWDAF to review and send any comments to the Senate chair by May 
13. 

 
X. Executive Session       30 mins. 

Voting members only.   
 

 
     

2 
 



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 

Committee on Faculty Welfare, Diversity, and Academic Freedom (FWDAF) 
Minutes of Meeting  

March 17, 2015 

Pursuant to call, the Committee on Faculty Welfare, Diversity, and Academic Freedom 
met at 3:00 pm on March 17, 2015 in Room 362 of the Kolligian Library, Chair Rudy 
Ortiz presiding. 

I. Vice Provost & Dean of Graduate Education 

VPDGE Marjorie Zatz attended today’s meeting and updated the FWDAF 
members on the following: 

--Graduate student space.  VP Zatz announced that she attends the Project 
2020 meetings and regularly relates to the administration the need for more 
interdisciplinary/synergy space.  To achieve this, she has implemented a seed 
grant program for $2,000 awards for interdisciplinary research.  She is also 
requesting to developers that graduate students and post docs should be 
located near their faculty advisors in order to better facilitate research.  VP 
Zatz also advocates for functional shared space for graduate students but 
with private areas for TAs, in addition to graduate student apartment 
housing in downtown Merced.      

A FWDAF member expressed concern about the Project 2020 projections of 
1,000 graduate students in light of inadequate financial support and space.  
VP Zatz replied that she is working with the Vice Chancellor for Research 
and Economic Development on non-resident tuition and discretionary funds 
through indirect cost return.  She is also encouraging students to apply for 
multi-year pre-doctoral fellowships through the NSF and DOE.  To that end, 
she is conducting workshops for graduate students on writing successful 
proposals and has identified faculty members that will serve as proposal 
reviewers.  As an incentive, she is offering $200 travel awards for each 
student who submits an application.  Successful applicants will receive an 
additional $200 in travel awards.  Other funding that VP Zatz is pursuing is 
via Google, Microsoft, and Achievement Rewards for College Scientists; she 
also successfully secured a fellowship opportunity with IBM. 

1 



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 

Another funding opportunity that currently exists for faculty but which VP Zatz 
is attempting expand to include graduate students is the Hellman Fellows Fund.  
UC Berkeley is piloting a project to provide fellowships to graduate students and 
the Hellman family has expressed interest in extending this opportunity to UC 
Merced.   Lastly, VP Zatz reported that the number of applicants for the 
dissertation fellowships numbers is increasing and she intends to hold 
workshops for graduate students on applying for fellowships.     

In response to a question about graduate student numbers, VP Zatz mentioned 
that graduate groups were asked to provide their expectations for graduate 
student to faculty ratio and those numbers are used as the basis for her 
projections.  VP Zatz acknowledged that while she is trying to grow the campus 
funding streams, some groups and fields will grow faster than others.  A FWDAF 
member pointed out the problem of so many graduate students on TAships 
rather than GSRs and VP Zatz stated that she is working with relevant 
administrators to place more graduate students on grants.   

VP Zatz stated that she envisions the twin pillars of graduate education at UC 
Merced to be diversity and interdisciplinarity.  She works with organizations 
such as SACNAS to recruit a diverse pool of graduate students, and emphasized 
the importance of the Cota-Robles fellowships and the UC-HBCU Initiative to 
enhance diversity.  She is also providing incentives to the school deans to 
provide multi-year offers to graduate students by providing multi-year 
fellowships. 

VP Zatz ended by informing FWDAF members that she would like to conduct 
more professional development events for graduate students with UC Merced 
faculty as well as faculty from other UCs.  She asked FWDAF members to 
provide their input on ways to enhance the graduate student population as well 
as space and diversity issues. 

ACTION:  FWDAF members to provide VP Zatz with recommendations on 
graduate student space, recruitment, and diversity.      

2 



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 

II. Consent Calendar

ACTION:  The February 17 meeting minutes were approved as presented. 

III. Chair’s Report

Chair Ortiz updated the FWDAF members on the following: 

--The Senate office submitted the call for nominations for all Senate awards 
on March 4 and nominations are due on April 8.  FWDAF will form an 
awards subcommittee to review nominations for the new Senate Award for 
Excellence in Faculty Mentorship.  Winners will be announced by the Senate 
chair at the Meeting of the Division on April 23. 

ACTION:  Three FWDAF members volunteered to serve on the ad hoc 
awards committee. 

--Faculty Search Committee Training Retreat 

Prior to this meeting, Chair Ortiz and VPF Camfield met to discuss the 
possibility of holding a retreat with AP and unit chairs to train faculty 
members serving on search committees to seek a diverse applicant pool.  A 
potential model is that which Dr. Yvette Huet conducts at University of North 
Carolina, Charlotte, where faculty members are asked to complete exercises 
to gauge implicit bias.  This training would take place next year at the earliest 
when faculty hiring is ramped up to previous levels.  A FWDAF member 
agreed with the concept of the training, but pointed out that implicit bias 
begins much earlier in the process.  Nonetheless, the committee unanimously 
agreed to work with VPF Camfield and his office to help plan the logistics of 
this retreat.  

ACTION:  FWDAF and APO to hold a planning meeting for a future faculty 
search committee retreat. 

3 

http://senate.ucmerced.edu/sites/senate.ucmerced.edu/files/public/Excellence%20in%20Faculty%20Mentorship%20Award%201415.pdf
http://senate.ucmerced.edu/sites/senate.ucmerced.edu/files/public/Excellence%20in%20Faculty%20Mentorship%20Award%201415.pdf


UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 

--Early Childhood Education Center Services 
Prior to this meeting, the faculty members on the ECEC Advisory Council 
wrote to FWDAF to make the committee aware of recent developments 
surrounding the ECEC’s services in the larger context of Project 2020.  
Campus-operated child care is important for the recruitment of qualified 
faculty, staff, and students.   

After a brief discussion, FWDAF members decided to table this issue until 
such time that the ECEC Advisory Council meets with administrative 
stakeholders.  FWDAF will address this issue when the Council 
representatives provide a request for action. 

--Faculty Contingency Plans 
Chair Ortiz and VPF Camfield brought to the attention of the FWDAF 
members that there is a lack of emergency preparedness and contingency 
planning in cases of faculty welfare and personal emergencies.  It is 
imperative for all faculty to maintain updated emergency contact numbers 
and assign a contact person to oversee their laboratories, graduate students, 
post docs, and technical staff when they are on sabbatical or other leaves.  It 
was suggested that Bylaw 55 unit chairs should encourage their faculty to 
keep such information updated.    

--Presidential Postdoctoral Fellow Hiring.   Pursuant to an action item from 
the February 17 meeting, Chair Ortiz is drafting, at the request of the 
Provost/EVC, a schematic on the hiring of Presidential Postdoctoral Fellows.  
Currently, groups must borrow against a future FTE line in order to hire a 
Fellow.  The ultimate goal is for a uniform hiring policy to be implemented 
systemwide.  Chair Ortiz will distribute the draft among committee members 
for review and approval.  

IV. Vice Chair’s Report

Vice Chair Golash-Boza, FWDAF’s representative to the Periodic Review  
Oversight Committee (PROC) reported that PROC has requested one member 
of FWDAF to serve on a new ad hoc committee to evaluate internal 

4 



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 

administrative assessments that were completed for five units. The proposed 
ad hoc committee will address the following:  1) whether these assessments 
fulfill the role of a periodic review such that they can substitute for the 
scheduled periodic reviews of these units, and 2) recommendations for the 
periodic review of administrative units based on the evaluation of these 
reviews. The ad hoc committee will examine the reviews of: Business and 
Financial Services, Early Childhood Education Center, Human Resources, 
and Public Safety. An ad hoc committee member can expect to read two 
documents, one as a primary and one as a secondary reader.  The ad hoc 
committee expects to complete its work by June 1.  

ACTION:  Committee analyst will contact members via email after the 
meeting to identify a volunteer to serve on PROC’s ad hoc committee.  

V. Systemwide Committee Updates 

--UCFW met on February 13 and March 13, 2015.  Professor Sean Malloy, 
FWDAF’s representative on UCFW, reported via email that Jack Stobo, Senior 
Vice President for Health Sciences and Services, provided an update at the 
February 13 UCFW meeting on the proposal to institute a UC Care HMO 
product.  The date of roll out is unknown.  UCFW drafted an opposition letter 
as some on the committee feel that current health plan options should not be 
replaced without a detailed study on access and affordability issues, the 
effects on the academic mission of the medical centers, and what would occur 
should the UC Care HMO fail.  Professor Malloy will provide an update from 
the March 13 meeting at a later time. 

--UCAF met on March 5 and due to time constraints, FWDAF representative 
Linda Cameron will provide an update at a later time. 

VI. Campus Review Items

--Global Arts Studies Proposed Major 

5 



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 

SSHA has proposed a major in Global Arts Studies.  Senate standing 
committees are asked to opine by April 6. 

ACTION:  Senate Chair will be informed that FWDAF has no comments. 

--Public Health CCGA Proposal 

Public Health has submitted a proposal to establish a PhD program.  Senate 
standing committees are asked to opine by April 9. 

ACTION:  Senate Chair will be informed that FWDAF has no comments. 

VII. Systemwide Review Items

--Revised Presidential Policy on Sexual Harassment and Violence. 

Systemwide has proposed various revisions to the Presidential Policy on 
Sexual Harassment and Sexual Violence, revisions that are intended to bring 
the UC into compliance with the requirements of the Violence Against 
Women Act that was reauthorized by President Obama in 2013. 

ACTION:  Senate Chair will be informed that FWDAF has no comments. 

--Proposed Amendments to Senate Bylaw 128.D.2 (Vice Chairs).  The 
proposed revisions would make the vice chairs of all standing systemwide 
committees at-large members. 

ACTION:  Senate Chair will be informed that FWDAF has no comments. 

--Proposed Amendments to Senate Bylaw 182 (University Committee on 
 International Education) 

The proposed revisions expand the UCIE’s purview from student exchange 
associated with UCEAP to international research collaborations, the welfare 

6 



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA ACADEMIC SENATE – MERCED DIVISION 

of international students and scholars, and international engagement 
initiatives. 

ACTION:  Senate Chair will be informed that FWDAF has no comments. 

--Guidelines on Accepting and Managing Equity in Return for Access to 
University Facilities and/or Services 

The UC is considering a pilot program whereby UC would be able to accept 
equity from companies in return for access to facilities and services associated 
with incubators and accelerators around the UC system.   

ACTION:  Senate Chair will be informed that FWDAF endorses the 
guidelines. 

VIII. Request for Nomination for UC Retirement System Advisory Board

Each campus has been asked by the systemwide Senate for a nomination for a 
Senate representative to serve on the UC Retirement System Advisory 
(UCRS) Board.  It is a four-year term beginning on July 1, 2015.  The UC 
Retirement System (UCRS) Advisory Board develops ideas or new 
approaches to the provisions of UCRS benefits and communicates them to the 
President of the University. The UCRS Advisory Board discusses concerns 
relating to all Members, Participants and their Beneficiaries. Additional 
information, including the Board’s charge, can be found here.   

ACTION:  Chair Ortiz will contact a faculty member that he has identified as 
a potential nominee and determine that faculty member’s willingness to be 
nominated. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:00 pm. 

Attest:   Rudy Ortiz, Chair 

Minutes prepared by:  Simrin Takhar, Senate Analyst 

7 

http://ucnet.universityofcalifornia.edu/compensation-and-benefits/retirement-benefits/ucrsab/index.html


U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A ,  M E R C E D

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED 
5200 NORTH LAKE ROAD 
MERCED, CA  95343 

    SANTA  BARBARA   •   SANTA CRUZBERKELEY  •  DAVIS  •  IRVINE  •  LOS ANGELES  •  MERCED  •  RIVERSIDE  •  SAN DIEGO  •  SAN FRANCISCO

   April 20, 2015 

Jian-Qiao Sun 
Chair, UC Merced Division of the Academic Senate 
UC Merced 

RE:  UC Merced’s Review under the WSCUC Standards 

Dear Chair Sun: 

As you know, this semester UC Merced initiated its efforts to re-affirm accreditation by the WASC Senior 
College and University Commission (WSCUC, formerly “WASC”). This process, which involves several 
stages1, will conclude with an Accreditation Visit in spring 2018 and, in June 2018, the WSCUC 
Commission decision to re-affirm accreditation for a period of 6, 8 or 10 years.  The Chancellor and 
Provost expect UC Merced to earn a 10-year re-affirmation period, continuing our record of strong 
accreditation reviews. 

The first step in the Institutional Review Process for re-affirmation is to complete, as an institution, 
the Review under the WSCUC Standards.  Through this first step, UC Merced will 

1. Undertake a preliminary, systematic institutional self-analysis under the WSCUC Standards, the
commitments, standards, and criteria UC Merced must be in substantial compliance with for
accreditation to re-affirmed.

2. Identify strengths and areas of good practice.
3. Identify areas that may need attention.
4. Generate a required document for our accreditation review; the Review under the WSCUC

Standards is the basis for the second essay of the institutional self-study report, and the
conclusions and supporting evidence are carefully validated by the external review team.

The WSCUC Steering Committee has completed a draft of the Review under the WSCUC Standards on 
behalf of the campus, and is now seeking feedback on this draft. 

Toward that end, I write to invite the Academic Senate to review the document, with a particular 
focus on Standards 2, 3, and 4, and return comments to me (with a cc to Laura Martin) by Thursday 

1 The stages of the Institutional Review Process (IRP) for re-affirmation, and the campus' timeline for this work, are 
available on the Re-affirmation page of UC Merced’s accreditation website, accreditation.ucmerced.edu. 

8

http://accreditation.ucmerced.edu/sites/accreditation.ucmerced.edu/files/page/documents/core_committments_standards_2013_from_handbook.pdf
http://accreditation.ucmerced.edu/sites/accreditation.ucmerced.edu/files/page/documents/institutional_report_2013_from_handbook.pdf
http://accreditation.ucmerced.edu/node/23
http://accreditation.ucmerced.edu/


May 21st.   If this is not possible, please respond with an alternative submission date as soon as 
possible.   

When reviewing the document, the faculty of the Senate should consider the extent to which they agree 
with 

1. The Steering Committee’s Self-Review Rating (column 3) and rating of Importance to
Address (column 4) for each Criteria for Review (CFR). WSCUC’s scoring rubric is provided in the
box in the upper left hand portion of p. 2 of the document.

2. The responses to the Synthesis/Reflections questions for each of the four standards.

If there is disagreement with a self-rating score, these differences can be noted in the document using 
the PDF sticky note or highlight function. Alternative scores, together with a brief explanation for the 
conclusion, including hyperlinks and/or references to evidence in support of the conclusions, are 
welcome. 

Similarly, the PDF sticky note and/or highlight function can be used to comment on and/or modify 
responses to the Synthesis/Reflection questions.2 

To increase the efficiency of the work, we recommend dividing the work of reviewing each Standard 
among individuals or teams of individuals. 

Laura Martin, the campus’ Accreditation Liaison Officer (ALO), and I are happy to meet with the 
Senate to review this process and/or answer questions. Please note that the first page of the 
worksheet includes a helpful overview, including 

• the purpose of the worksheet , Purpose of Worksheet
• the relationship of the WSCUC Standards, Criteria for Review (CFR), and Guidelines, The WSCUC

Standards, CFRs, and Guidelines
• guidance for completing the worksheet, Using this Worksheet

Finally, please know that, in addition to the Senate, a broad array of institutional stakeholders have 
been invited to review and comment on this draft, including but not limited to the School Executive 
Committees, campus administrative leadership, and student leadership.  

On behalf of the Steering Committee, thank you very much for your assistance in completing this 
significant first stage in our re-affirmation of accreditation effort. We look forward to your feedback. 

Sincerely, 
Nate Monroe 
Associate Professor, and Chair, WSCUC Steering Committee 

2 We chose not to offer Word documents as we have found the tables quite difficult to work with and somewhat 
unstable in their formatting.  

9



10



Review under WSCUC Standards and Compliance with Federal Requirements
Purpose of the Worksheet 

This worksheet is designed to assist planning groups preparing for a WASC Senior College and University Commission (WSCUC) review to undertake a preliminary, systematic 
institutional self-analysis under the WSCUC Standards by identifying strengths and areas of good practice as well as areas that may need attention. Institutions will also use this 
worksheet to identify, and insert references to, key supporting documentation to support its judgments. Teams will follow these references to verify the completeness of the 
information. After being used to stimulate discussion and to help focus the review, the completed worksheet will then be submitted with the self-study for evaluation as evidence for 
Component 2 of the Institutional Report at the time of the Offsite Review, with follow up as needed at the time of the Accreditation Visit. The submission of this worksheet with the 
institution’s self study helps to validate that the institution has been reviewed under all Standards and relevant Criteria for Review. 

The WSCUC Standards, CFRs, and Guidelines 
The WSCUC Standards guide institutions in self-review, provide a framework for institutional submissions, and serve as the basis for judgments by evaluation teams and the 

Commission. Each Standard is set forth in broad holistic terms that are applicable to all institutions. Under each of the four Standards are two or more major categories that make 
the application of the Standard more specific. Under each of these categories are Criteria for Review (CFRs), which identify and define specific applications of the Standard. 
Guidelines, provided for some but not all CFRs, identify typical or common forms or methods for demonstrating performance related to the CFR; institutions, however, may provide 
alternative demonstrations of compliance. This worksheet contains all the CFRs and Guidelines from the 2013 Handbook of Accreditation. An “X” in the cell indicates a cross-
reference to other CFRs that touch on related issues. 

Using this Worksheet 
  The worksheet is used during the early stages of planning for the Institutional Report and may be revisited later when preparing for further reviews. For each CFR, 

institutions are asked to give themselves a rating indicating how well they are doing, to identify the importance of addressing the CFR as an aspect of the review, and to provide 
comments as appropriate, about their self-assessment. Key areas may thereby be identified where more evidence is needed or more development required. Institutions may have 
members of the planning group complete the worksheet individually with responses reviewed by the group as a whole. Or an institution may divide the worksheet by Standards with 
different groups completing each standard. Use these or other approaches to complete the worksheet. 

  Once the institution has completed this self-review process, priorities that are identified using this form should be integrated with the institution’s context, goals, and planning 
in the development of its report. Summary questions are provided in the worksheet as a means of assisting institutions in determining areas of greatest concern or areas of good 
practice to be addressed or highlighted in institutional reports.  Please include the summary sheets with the submission of this worksheet. 

Compliance with Federal Requirements 
In addition to the Review, there are four checklists that team members will complete during the Accreditation Visit and attach to their team report in order to ensure that the 

institution is in compliance with the federal requirements cited in the checklists. The institution is expected to provide the links to the needed information in anticipation of the 
team’s review at the time of the visit. 

033114 

11



Review under WSCUC Standards

Provide the institution’s consensus rating for columns 3 and 4; add comments as appropriate 
in column 5.  For un-shaded cells in Column 6, delete text and provide links or references to 
evidence in support of findings. Column 7 is for staff and teams to verify documentation and 
for teams to comments on evidence. 

Self-Review Rating         Importance to address at this time    
1= We do this well; area of strength for us A:U= High priority – Urgent 
2= Aspects of this need our attention   A:OA = High priority – Ongoing attention needed 

in light of 2020-related growth. 
3= This item needs significant development B= Medium priority 
0= Does not apply C= Lower priority 

0= Does not apply 

Institutional Information 

Institution:  University of California, Merced 

Type of Review: 
 Comprehensive for Reaffirmation

Date of Submission: ____/_____/_______ 
Mo Day Year 

Institutional Contact: Laura Martin, ALO 

Standard 1. Defining Institutional Purposes and Ensuring Educational Objectives
The institution defines its purposes and establishes educational objectives aligned w ith those purposes. The institution has a clear and explicit sense of its essential values and 
character, its distinctive elements, its place in both the higher education community and society, and its contribution to the public good. I t functions w ith integrity, 
transparency, and autonomy. 

Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importance 
to Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
Institutional Purposes 

1.1    The institution’s formally approved statements of 
purpose are appropriate for an institution of higher 
education and clearly define its essential values and 
character and ways in which it contributes to the 
public good. 

The institution has a published mission statement 
that clearly describes its purposes. 
The institution’s purposes fall within recognized 
academic areas and/or disciplines. 

2 C 

Though functional, the 
mission could benefit from 
revision.  A recurrent theme 
is that the mission statement 
is overly long and slightly 
outdated. Recently, CAPRRA 
noted that the mission is not 
a relevant reference 
document.  Rated as a lower 
priority in light of more 
urgent and important 
priorities. Steering Committee 
noted that UCM might 
consider updating its mission 
after the self-study is 
complete, permitting 
revisions to be informed by 
the outcomes of the self-
study process. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 1: 
Introduction. 

• Mission
• Principles of

Community

033114 

12

http://www.ucmerced.edu/ucmerced-mission
http://www.ucmerced.edu/principles-of-community
http://www.ucmerced.edu/principles-of-community


1.2 Educational objectives are widely recognized 
throughout the institution, are consistent with stated 
purposes, and are demonstrably achieved. The 
institution regularly generates, evaluates, and makes 
public data about student achievement, including 
measures of retention and graduation, and evidence of 
student learning outcomes. 
X 2.4, 2.6, 2.10, 4.2 

2 B/A:OA 

• To what extent are
educational objectives
widely recognized? How
do we know?

• How are educational
objectives
shared/communicated
within the institution
(students, faculty, staff)
as the institution grows?

• As an institution, need to
consider how we will
make public “evidence of
student learning
outcomes”, beyond those
reported in the UC
Merced Profile and in
keeping with our campus
principles of assessment.

• IRDS makes data on
student achievement
including retention and
grad available, but it is
difficult to get there from
any of main landing
pages. Propose adding
assessment/student
success link on campus
homepage under
“About.”

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 3: 
Degree Programs and 
Component 5: Student 
Success. 

Public disclosure links 
verified by Annual 
Report. 

Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importance 
to Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
Integrity and Transparency 

1.3 The institution publicly states its commitment to 
academic freedom for faculty, staff, and students, and 
acts accordingly. This commitment affirms that those 
in the academy are free to share their convictions and 
responsible conclusions with their colleagues and 
students in their teaching and writing. 

 X 3.2, 3.10 

The institution has published or has readily 
available policies on academic freedom. For those 
institutions that strive to instill specific beliefs and 
world views, policies clearly state how these views 
are implemented and ensure that these conditions 
are consistent with generally recognized principles 
of academic freedom. Due-process procedures are 
disseminated, demonstrating that faculty and 
students are protected in their quest for truth. 

1 C 
• Commitment is publicly

stated in system-wide
APM (APM – 010). Hard
to know how easy it is to
locate from campus.

• What about for staff who
work with academics? Do
they need/receive
orientation on academic
freedom? Is there
existing policy for non-
academic staff regard
academic freedom?

• Academic Freedom
Statement in system-
wide Academic
Personnel Manual (APM
-010)

• Academic freedom for
Unit 18 lecturers is
provided in Article 2 of
MOU with UC.

• Principles of
Community

033114 

13

http://www.ucop.edu/academic-personnel-programs/_files/apm/apm-010.pdf
http://www.ucop.edu/academic-personnel-programs/_files/apm/apm-010.pdf
http://ucaft.org/content/unit-18-mou
http://www.ucmerced.edu/principles-of-community
http://www.ucmerced.edu/principles-of-community


1.4 Consistent with its purposes and character, the 
institution demonstrates an appropriate response to 
the increasing diversity in society through its policies, 
its educational and co-curricular programs, its hiring 
and admissions criteria, and its administrative and 
organizational practices. 
X 2.2a, 3.1 

The institution has demonstrated institutional 
commitment to the principles enunciated in 
the WSCUC Diversity Policy. 

1 A:OA 
• Campus has a clear

commitment to diversity
as stated in our mission,
but needs to continue to
focus on diversity as a
campus, including in all
its definitions, across all
areas.

• Would campus benefit
from a strategic plan for
diversity?

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review. 

1.5 Even when supported by or affiliated with 
governmental, corporate, or religious organizations, 
the institution has education as its primary purpose 
and operates as an academic institution with 
appropriate autonomy. 
X 3.6 – 3.10 

The institution does not experience interference in 
substantive decisions or educational functions by 
governmental, religious, corporate, or other 
external bodies that have a relationship to the 
institution. 

1 C 
The University is governed by 
The Regents, which under 
Article IX, Section 9 of the 
California Constitution has 
"full powers of organization 
and governance" subject only 
to very specific areas of 
legislative control. The article 
states that "the university 
shall be entirely independent 
of all political and sectarian 
influence and kept free 
therefrom in the appointment 
of its Regents and in the 
administration of its affairs."  
Consistent with this, the UC 
Merced operates with 
appropriate autonomy.  

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review. 

1.6 The institution truthfully represents its academic goals, 
programs, services, and costs to students and to the 
larger public. The institution demonstrates that its 
academic programs can be completed in a timely 
fashion. The institution treats students fairly and 
equitably through established policies and procedures 
addressing student conduct, grievances, human 
subjects in research, disability, and financial matters, 
including refunds and financial aid. 

X 2.12 

The institution has published or has readily 
available policies on student grievances and 
complaints, refunds, etc. The institution does not 
have a history of adverse findings against it with 
respect to violation of these policies. Records of 
student complaints are maintained for a six-year 
period. The institution clearly defines and 
distinguishes between the different types of 
credits it offers and between degree and non-
degree credit, and accurately identifies the type 
and meaning of the credit awarded in its 
transcripts. The institution’s policy on grading and 
student evaluation is clearly stated and provides 
opportunity for appeal as needed. 

1 C 
Truthful information about 
academic goals, programs, 
services and costs to students 
is available to students and 
the larger public on campus 
websites including those of 
the Registrar, Student Affairs, 
Disability Services, Office of 
Student Life, Student Conduct 
(Student Judicial Affairs), and 
Financial Aid.  

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review. 

Truthful 
representation and 
complaint policies 
evaluated during 
comprehensive review 

033114 

14

http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/governance/bylaws/bl5.html%235.1
http://registrar.ucmerced.edu/
http://studentaffairs.ucmerced.edu/
http://disability.ucmerced.edu/node/15
http://studentlife.ucmerced.edu/
http://studentlife.ucmerced.edu/
http://studentlife.ucmerced.edu/content/office-student-conduct-formely-known-student-judicial-affairs
http://studentlife.ucmerced.edu/content/resources-forms
http://financialaid.ucmerced.edu/


Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importance 
to Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
1.7 The institution exhibits integrity and transparency in its 

operations, as demonstrated by the adoption and 
implementation of appropriate policies and procedures, 
sound business practices, timely and fair responses to 
complaints and grievances, and regular evaluation of 
its performance in these areas. The institution’s 
finances are regularly audited by qualified independent 
auditors. 
X 3.4, 3.6. 3.7 

1 C UC Merced has a high level of 
integrity and transparency in its 
operations as evidenced by 
commitment to an 
appropriately resourced Office 
of Campus Culture & 
Compliance (OC3) placed within 
the Chancellor’s Office for the 
highest degree of independence 
when evaluating campus 
operations. OC3 is organized to 
ensure coordinated 
independent evaluation of 
business processes through the 
Internal Audit function as well 
as through compliance 
monitoring within the Ethics & 
Compliance 
Program.  Coordination of 
campus-wide policies and 
procedures has been 
consolidated under OC3 to 
enhance access to and 
development of local 
procedures.  Timely and fair 
responses to complaints and 
grievances have received robust 
attention at UC Merced. 
Coordination of complaints 
across all functional areas at UC 
Merced is being carried out by 
OC3, with emphasis on 
promoting efficiencies, 
improving accountability, and 
tracking complaints and 
outcomes through disposition 
so we are better able to 
understand and improve culture 
in real time.   

Audits submitted with 
Annual Report. 

033114 
15



1.8 The institution is committed to honest and open 
communication with the Accrediting Commission; to 
undertaking the accreditation review process with 
seriousness and candor; to informing the Commission 
promptly of any matter that could materially affect the 
accreditation status of the institution; and to abiding 
by Commission policies and procedures, including all 
substantive change policies. 

1 C 
UC Merced carefully attends 
to accreditation requirements, 
including those related to 
substantive change, with the 
support of the ALO and 
Substantive Change 
Coordinator.  UC Merced 
continues to develop 
practices (e.g. ALO ex-officio 
on Graduate Council) to 
ensure that we abide by 
these expectations. When 
questions arise we work with 
WSCUC staff to gather 
answers and understand the 
implications for the campus.   

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 1: 
Introduction. 

Commitments to 
integrity with respect 
to WSCUC policies are 
demonstrated in prior 
interactions with 
WSCUC. 

033114 

16



Synthesis/Reflections on Standard One 

1. After completing this analysis, what are the two or three most important issues that emerged from the self-review of this Standard?

• Our mission is outdated and could benefit from revision. The Steering Committee suggested that revisions might be an outcome of the self-study process associated with re-affirmation
of accreditation.

• We meet these expectations but our documentation needs to be more accessible to stakeholders. For instance, the academic freedom policy and student success data.

2. Looking overall at the quality and effectiveness of the institution’s data gathering and systems to support the review process, what are institutional strengths under this
Standard?

• The campus does a good job of collecting data that illustrates we meet to this Standard (and CFR), in fact and in spirit.

3. Looking again at the overall quality and effectiveness of the institution’s data gathering and systems, what are areas to be addressed or improved under this Standard?

• We need to better job of making crucial information—such as, the eight guiding principles, academic freedom, commitment to diversity, and student outcomes—easily accessible to
internal and external stakeholders.

033114 

17



Standard 2: Achieving Educational Objectives Through Core Functions 
The institution achieves its purposes and attains its educational objectives at the institutional and program level through the core functions of teaching and learning, 
scholarship and creative activity, and support for student learning and success. The institution demonstrates that these core functions are performed effectively by evaluating 
valid and reliable evidence of learning and by supporting the success of every student. 

Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review Rating 
(3) 

Importance 
to Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
Teaching and Learning 

2.1 The institution’s educational programs are appropriate 
in content, standards of performance, rigor, and 
nomenclature for the degree level awarded, regardless 
of mode of delivery. They are staffed by sufficient 
numbers of faculty qualified for the type and level of 
curriculum offered. 
X 3.1 

The content, length, and standards of 
the institution’s academic programs 
conform to recognized disciplinary or 
professional standards and are subject 
to peer review. 

1.5 - UG 
1.5 - Grad 

A:OA Content, length, and 
standards of academic 
programs, graduate and 
undergraduate conform to 
recognized disciplinary and 
professional standards. 
Programs are also subject to 
rigorous peer review, both at 
the time they are proposed 
and once every seven years 
via program review. Faculty: 
student ratios at the 
institutional level are in 
keeping with our UC peers, 
although ratios vary across 
programs. Faculty are 
appropriately qualified for the 
curriculum as vetted through 
faculty hiring and peer review 
processes and, in some cases 
as appropriate, administrative 
review.  Additional faculty are 
needed as programs continue 
to grow. We are engaged in 
integrative planning as an 
institution in support of the 
goal of 10,000 students by 
2020. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review, 
documented in “Credit 
Hour and Program 
Length Checklist” 

18



Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review Rating 
(3) 

Importance 
to Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
2.2 All degrees—undergraduate and graduate—awarded by 

the institution are clearly defined in terms of entry-
level requirements and levels of student achievement 
necessary for graduation that represent more than 
simply an accumulation of courses or credits. The 
institution has both a coherent philosophy, expressive 
of its mission, which guides the meaning of its degrees 
and processes that ensure the quality and integrity of 
its degrees. 
X 3.1 – 3.3, 4.3, 4.4 

2 - UG 
1- Grad 

A:U - UG 
C - Grad 

At the undergraduate level, 
entry level requirements are 
clearly defined and set at the 
system-level. Within the 
major and standalone minors, 
PLOs and associated rubrics 
define levels of student 
achievement that represent 
more than an accumulation of 
courses or credits. As an 
institution, we are in the 
process of clarifying and fully 
defining the meaning of the 
baccalaureate degree as part 
of our re-examination of 
General Education. At the 
graduate level, degrees are 
clearly defined in terms of 
entry level requirements as 
articulated in program-level 
policies and procedures, and 
the Graduate Advisor 
Handbook. Capstone 
experiences are required for 
masters (thesis or 
comprehensive exam) and 
PhD (dissertation); 
expectations associated with 
degree completion (PLOs, 
rubrics) define levels of 
student achievement 
necessary for graduation and 
represent more than an 
accumulation of courses or 
credits. There is a coherent 
philosophy that guides the 
meaning of graduate 
degrees, including learning 
outcomes for the Masters and 
PhD, and processes to ensure 
the quality and integrity.  

Program descriptions 
in Catalog. 

• UCM Catalog

See also program 
websites:  
• School of Social

Sciences,
Humanities and
Arts

• School of Natural
Sciences

• School of
Engineering

Also evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 3: 
Degree Programs and 
Component 4: 
Educational Quality. 

19

http://catalog.ucmerced.edu/
http://ssha.ucmerced.edu/academics
http://ssha.ucmerced.edu/academics
http://ssha.ucmerced.edu/academics
http://ssha.ucmerced.edu/academics
https://naturalsciences.ucmerced.edu/academics
https://naturalsciences.ucmerced.edu/academics
http://engineering.ucmerced.edu/academics-1
http://engineering.ucmerced.edu/academics-1


Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review Rating 
(3) 

Importance 
to Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
2.2a Baccalaureate programs engage students in an 

integrated course of study of sufficient breadth and 
depth to prepare them for work, citizenship, and life-
long learning. These programs ensure the 
development of core competencies including, but not 
limited to, written and oral communication, 
quantitative reasoning, information literacy, and critical 
thinking. In addition, baccalaureate programs actively 
foster creativity, innovation, an appreciation for 
diversity, ethical and civic responsibility, civic 
engagement, and the ability to work with others. 
Baccalaureate programs also ensure breadth for all 
students in cultural and aesthetic, social and political, 
and scientific and technical knowledge expected of 
educated persons. Undergraduate degrees include 
significant in-depth study in a given area of knowledge 
(typically described in terms of a program or major). 
X 3.1 – 3.3  

The institution has a program of 
General Education that is integrated 
throughout the curriculum, including 
at the upper division level, together 
with significant in-depth study in a 
given area of knowledge (typically 
described in terms of a program or 
major). 

3 – UG A:U The score of three reflects 
the status of GE; we are in 
the process of revising 
General Education to address 
the description outlined in the 
guideline. A process is in 
place to attend to student 
development and assessment 
of the core competencies for 
all majors through the 
program learning outcomes.  

Description of General 
Education program 
with reference to Core 
Competencies. 

Also evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 3: 
Degree Programs and 
Component 4: 
Educational Quality. 

2.2b The institution’s graduate programs establish clearly 
stated objectives differentiated from and more 
advanced than undergraduate programs in terms of 
admissions, curricula, standards of performance, and 
student learning outcomes. Graduate programs foster 
students’ active engagement with the literature of the 
field and create a culture that promotes the 
importance of scholarship and/or professional practice. 
Ordinarily, a baccalaureate degree is required for 
admission to a graduate program. 
X 3.1 – 3.3 

Institutions offering graduate-level 
programs employ, at least, one full-
time faculty member for each 
graduate degree program offered and 
have a preponderance of the faculty 
holding the relevant terminal degree 
in the discipline. Institutions 
demonstrate that there is a sufficient 
number of faculty members to exert 
collective responsibility for the 
development and evaluation of the 
curricula, academic policies, and 
teaching and mentoring of students. 

1 -Grad B See CFR 2.2. We clearly meet 
all aspects of this CFR, 
including as described in the 
guideline. We demonstrate 
this to WSCUC with every 
substantive review for new 
graduate programs. Initially, 
there were a number of 
conjoined undergraduate/ 
graduate courses; with 
growth of faculty this has 
decreased to an appropriate 
number. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 3: 
Degree Programs and 
Component 4: 
Educational Quality. 

20



Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review Rating 
(3) 

Importance 
to Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
2.3 The institution’s student learning outcomes and 

standards of performance are clearly stated at the 
course, program, and, as appropriate, institutional 
level. These outcomes and Standards are reflected in 
academic programs, policies, and curricula, and are 
aligned with advisement, library, and information and 
technology resources, and the wider learning 
environment. 
X 3.5 

The institution is responsible for 
ensuring that out-of-class learning 
experiences, such as clinical work, 
service learning, and internships which 
receive credit, are adequately 
resourced, well developed, and 
subject to appropriate oversight. 

1 – UG 
1 -Grad 

(with respect to the CFR, 3 
with regard to the guideline, if 

we choose to accept the 
guideline) 

A:OA (with 
respect to the 
CFR); B with 
respect to the 
guideline. 

As described in the CFR, this 
is an area strength for us.  
The “A” rating recognizes the 
need to acculturate new 
faculty as we continue to 
grow. Regarding the 
guideline: there are questions 
about resourcing for co-
curricular experiences like 
internships or service learning 
that address the needs of our 
students specifically, e.g. 
financial needs, or the factors 
related to local context.   

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 3: 
Degree Programs. 

2.4 The institution’s student learning outcomes and 
standards of performance are developed by faculty 
and widely shared among faculty, students, staff, and 
(where appropriate) external stakeholders. The 
institution’s faculty take collective responsibility for 
establishing appropriate standards of performance and 
demonstrating through assessment the achievement of 
these standards. 
X 4.3 – 4.4 

Student learning outcomes are 
reflected in course syllabi. 

1 – UG 
 2 – Grad 

A:OA By Regental authority, policy 
and practice, faculty are 
responsible for curriculum, 
including student learning 
outcomes, standards of 
performance, and for 
demonstrating through 
assessment student 
achievement of these 
standards. Student learning 
outcomes are required for 
approval of new courses, and 
appear in the syllabi of nearly 
all courses. At the graduate 
level, shared expectations for 
learning as reflected in 
systematic assessment of 
program outcomes that 
advances a shared set of 
standards among faculty is 
still evolving.  The “A” rating 
recognizes the need to 
acculturate new faculty as we 
continue to grow. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 3: 
Degree Programs, 
Component 4: 
Educational Quality, 
and Component 6: 
Quality Assurance. 

21



Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review Rating 
(3) 

Importance 
to Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
2.5 The institution’s academic programs actively involve 

students in learning, take into account students’ prior 
knowledge of the subject matter, challenge students to 
meet high standards of performance, offer 
opportunities for them to practice, generalize, and 
apply what they have learned, and provide them with 
appropriate and ongoing feedback about their 
performance and how it can be improved. 
X 4.4 

2 - UG 
1 - Grad 

A:U – UG 
A:OA - Grad 

Rated as a 2 for the 
undergraduate level, because 
we need to address these 
expectations for General 
Education. There is also some 
thought that expectations for 
student performance, and 
support to help students 
meet those expectations, may 
not be uniformly high across 
all undergraduate programs. 
Some programs and courses 
may benefit from 
development in this area. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review. 

2.6 The institution demonstrates that its graduates 
consistently achieve its stated learning outcomes and 
established standards of performance. The institution 
ensures that its expectations for student learning are 
embedded in the standards that faculty use to 
evaluate student work. 
X 4.3 – 4.4 

The institution has an assessment 
infrastructure adequate to assess 
student learning at program and 
institution levels. 

1.5 – UG 
1.5 -Grad 

A:OA UCM has a strong academic 
assessment infrastructure, 
growing understanding of 
practice and use of results to 
inform teaching and 
curriculum. Student 
achievement of academic 
standards is also considered 
during program review. 
Assessment of student 
learning in GE is in 
development.  At the 
graduate level, we need 
continue to attend to 
assessment as programs 
grow and new programs are 
added.  

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 3: 
Degree Programs, 
Component 4: 
Educational Quality, 
and Component 6: 
Quality Assurance. 

22



Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review Rating 
(3) 

Importance 
to Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
2.7 All programs offered by the institution are subject to 

systematic program review. The program review 
process includes, but is not limited to, analyses of 
student achievement of the program’s learning 
outcomes; retention and graduation rates; and, 
where appropriate, results of licensing examination 
and placement, and evidence from external 
constituencies such as employers and professional 
organizations. 
X 4.1, 4.6 

1 – UG 
1 -Grad 

A:OA All academic and co-curricular 
programs are subject to 
program review on a seven 
year cycle. By policy, reviews 
consider student learning 
outcomes, retention and 
graduation rates.  The 
process is overseen and 
coordinated by the Periodic 
Oversight Review Committee, 
which is working to 
strengthen periodic review as 
a means for advancing 
program and institutional 
goals.    

• Academic program
review policies:
Undergraduate,
Graduate

• Academic program
review schedules:
Undergraduate,
Graduate

• Student Affairs Program
Review policy and
schedule

[Description of Program 
Review process and 
calendar for academic 
and co-curricular units.] 

Also addressed during 
review through 
Component 3: Degree 
Programs, Component 4: 
Educational Quality, 
Component 5: Student 
Success, and Component 
6: Quality Assurance. 

23

http://senate.ucmerced.edu/sites/senate.ucmerced.edu/files/public/UGC_PRPolicyFIN5.8.14.pdf
http://senate.ucmerced.edu/sites/senate.ucmerced.edu/files/public/GradProgramReviewSchedule%20AY1415.pdf
http://senate.ucmerced.edu/sites/senate.ucmerced.edu/files/public/UGC_Revised%20PR%20CycleFOR%20WEBSITE%201.7.15.pdf
http://senate.ucmerced.edu/sites/senate.ucmerced.edu/files/public/GradProgramReviewSchedule%20AY1415.pdf
http://studentaffairs.ucmerced.edu/sites/studentaffairs.ucmerced.edu/files/page/documents/program_review_guidelines_2011-15.pdf
http://studentaffairs.campuscms.ucmerced.edu/program_review_schedule


Scholarship and Creative Activity 
2.8 The institution clearly defines expectations for 

research, scholarship, and creative activity for its 
students and all categories of faculty. The institution 
actively values and promotes scholarship, creative 
activity, and curricular and instructional innovation, 
and their dissemination appropriate to the institution’s 
purposes and character. 
X 3.2 

Where appropriate, the institution 
includes in its policies for faculty 
promotion and tenure the recognition 
of scholarship related to teaching, 
learning, assessment, and co-
curricular learning. 

2 - UG 
1 - Grad 

1 - Faculty 

A:OA The extent to which 
expectations for research, 
scholarship and creative 
activity is defined for 
undergraduates varies with 
major as described in 
program learning outcomes 
and degree overview.  The 
institution is working to clarify 
this aspect of the meaning of 
the baccalaureate degree. 
These requirements are 
available to all faculty, Senate 
and non-Senate as codified in 
the Academic Personnel 
Manual (APM 210) and MOU, 
respectively. Instructional and 
curricular innovation is 
encouraged. Faculty are 
encouraged to apply for 
graduate training grants from 
funding agencies, and this 
activity is recognized in 
personnel reviews.  The “A” 
rating recognizes the need to 
acculturate new faculty as we 
continue to grow. [Note: 
Recommendation by Review 
Team for Initial Accreditation 
(p.30): “In the tenure and 
promotion process, consider 
research on teaching as a 
standard, acknowledging the 
firm foundation of 
assessment. View this as a 
form of scholarship.”] 

Policies related to faculty 
and student research. 
• Senate Faculty: APM

210 
• Non-Senate,

lecturing faculty:
MOU

24

http://accreditation.ucmerced.edu/files/page/documents/eer_team_report.final_.pdf
http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/committees/ucaad/apm210.pdf
http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/committees/ucaad/apm210.pdf
http://ucaft.org/sites/default/files/pub/Unit_18_MOU_2014/Articles/ix_2011-2015_07b_process-initial-appointments.pdf


2.9 The institution recognizes and promotes appropriate 
linkages among scholarship, teaching, assessment, 
student learning, and service. 
X 3.2 

2 – UG 
2 - Grad 

A:OA Appropriate linkages are 
recognized in system-wide 
policy governing appointment 
and promotion for Senate 
faculty:  “Superior intellectual 
attainment, as evidenced 
both in teaching and in 
research or other creative 
achievement, is an 
indispensable qualification for 
appointment or promotion to 
tenure positions.” (APM-210). 
Some non-Senate faculty also 
engage in scholarship on 
teaching, pedagogy, and 
assessment. However, 
interpretation and recognition 
of these expectations varies 
across by-law units. The 
campus also continues to 
work on recognizing 
assessment as part of 
teaching (at course and 
program levels). Toward this 
end, the Graduate Division, 
the Office of Institutional 
Assessment and the Center 
for Research on Teaching 
Excellence offer a learning 
community “Assessment as 
Pedagogy and Planning” for 
faculty and graduate 
students. Interest in the 
learning community increases 
with each offering suggesting 
a growing recognition of the 
importance of 
assessment/culture of 
assessment. The campus is 
also working on mechanisms 
for assessing mentoring in 
interdisciplinary context, 
especially across schools.  

Policies related to 
faculty evaluation, 
promotion, and 
tenure. 

• Senate Faculty: APM
210 

• Non-Senate, lecturing
faculty: MOU

25

http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/committees/ucaad/apm210.pdf
http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/committees/ucaad/apm210.pdf
http://ucaft.org/sites/default/files/pub/Unit_18_MOU_2014/Articles/ix_2011-2015_07b_process-initial-appointments.pdf


Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importance 
to Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
Student Learning and Success 

2.10  The institution demonstrates that students make 
timely progress toward the completion of their 
degrees and that an acceptable proportion of 
students complete their degrees in a timely fashion, 
given the institution’s mission, the nature of the 
students it serves, and the kinds of programs it 
offers. The institution collects and analyzes student 
data, disaggregated by appropriate demographic 
categories and areas of study. It tracks achievement, 
satisfaction, and the extent to which the campus 
climate supports student success. The institution 
regularly identifies the characteristics of its students; 
assesses their preparation, needs, and experiences; 
and uses these data to improve student achievement. 

The institution disaggregates data according 
to racial, ethnic, gender, age, economic 
status, disability, and other categories, as 
appropriate. The institution benchmarks its 
retention and graduation rates against its 
own aspirations as well as the rates of peer 
institutions. 

• 2  - UG  (TTD, and
degree completion)

• 1.5 – Grad
• 1 -both (for data

collection and
disaggregation,
etc.)

A:U - UG 
A:OA – Grad 

and both 

UCM’s data collection efforts 
are sound in relation to the 
expectations described in this 
CFR. At the undergraduate 
level, we are actively seeking 
to understand barriers to 
completing a degree in four 
years in order to improve the 
fraction of students 
completing in a timely 
fashion. These efforts could 
benefit from greater 
coordination campus-wide.  
On finer scales than 
described in this CFR, we 
need to improve data 
gathering and use in support 
of student success. At the 
graduate level, TTD and 
degree completion rates are 
commensurate with national 
norms, but we strive to 
continue to improve. We are 
in the process of further 
systematizing data collection 
at the graduate level.  

Included in Annual 
Report. 

Also evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
in Component 6: 
Quality Assurance. 

2.11 Consistent with its purposes, the institution offers co-
curricular programs that are aligned with its academic 
goals, integrated with academic programs, and 
designed to support all students’ personal and 
professional development. The institution assesses the 
effectiveness of its co-curricular programs and uses 
the results for improvement. 
X 4.3 – 4.5 

UG: 
• 2 (for alignment and

support for all
students’ personal
and professional
development),

• 3 (for integration),
• 2 (for assessment

and use of results)
Grad: 
• 2 (for alignment and

support for all
students’ personal
and professional
development),

• 2 (for integration),
• 2 (for assessment

and use of results)

A:U – UG 
A:OA - Grad 

At undergraduate level, co-
curricular programs are 
designed to support all 
students’ personal and 
professional development, 
and are aligned with 
academic goals. They are 
not, however, integrated with 
academic programs. At the 
graduate level, Student 
Affairs and Graduate Division 
are offering programs that 
are aligned with academic 
goals, and designed to 
support all students’ personal 
and professional 
development. At both levels, 
co-curricular assessment is 
happening but not 
consistently.  

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review. 

26



2.12  The institution ensures that all students understand 
the requirements of their academic programs and 
receive timely, useful, and complete information and 
advising about relevant academic requirements. 
X 1.6 

Recruiting materials and advertising 
truthfully portray the institution. Students 
have ready access to accurate, current, and 
complete information about admissions, 
degree requirements, course offerings, and 
educational costs. 

2 - UG 
2 - Grad 

A:U UG advising is an area to 
strengthen, particularly with 
respect to ensuring all 
students understand the 
requirements of their 
academic programs and 
receive timely and useful 
information. For instance, 
data suggest that a 
significant fraction of 
students struggle with degree 
planning. At the graduate 
level, annual student reviews 
are critical to ensuring 
students understand and 
receive timely advice about 
degree requirements; we are 
working to strengthen this 
aspect of graduate education. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review; 
documented in 
“Marketing and 
Recruitment Review” 
Checklist. 

2.13 The institution provides academic and other student 
support services such as tutoring, services for students 
with disabilities, financial aid counseling, career 
counseling and placement, residential life, athletics, 
and other services and programs as appropriate, which 
meet the needs of the specific types of students that 
the institution serves and the programs it offers. 
X 3.1 

2 - UG 
2 - Grad 

B UCM provides all listed 
services for undergraduates. 
We are unclear about the 
extent to which services are 
systematically assessed to 
ensure they meet the needs 
of UC Merced’s students. 
Relevant services also exist at 
the graduate level, but we 
have additional needs, 
including residential life for 
international students in 
particular, and mental health 
services oriented for graduate 
students.  Assessment is 
happening but not 
consistently at both levels. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review. 

2.14 Institutions that serve transfer students provide clear, 
accurate, and timely information, ensure equitable 
treatment under academic policies, provide such 
students access to student services, and ensure that 
they are not unduly disadvantaged by the transfer 
process. 
X 1.6 

Formal policies or articulation agreements 
are developed with feeder institutions that 
minimize the loss of credits through transfer 
credits.  

3 (UG) 
0 (Grad) 

A:U At undergraduate level, it is 
not clear what is working and 
what is not working. Transfer 
success is a system-wide 
priority.  

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 5: 
Student Success.  Also 
documented in 
“Transfer Credit Policy 
Checklist”. 

27



Synthesis/Reflections on Standard Two 

1. After completing this analysis, what are the two or three most important issues that emerged from the self-review of this Standard?

Undergraduate Level: 
• Clarifying the meaning of the baccalaureate degree, including as a means for contextualizing the contributions of the major, GE, and the co-curriculum. (CFR 2.2)
• Addressing all aspects of GE including its contribution to the undergraduate degree, the learning outcomes of General education, its contributions to student development of the Core

Competencies, its design to cultivate intended learning outcomes, and our mechanisms for sustainably assessing student achievement of intended outcomes. (CFR 2.2a, 2.5, 2.6)
• Undergraduate advising (CFR 2.12)

Graduate 
• Assessment of graduate academic programs is evolving and needs continued development to ensure meaningful, valid and reliable results on which to take action. (CFR 2.4, 2.6)
• More consistent implementation of annual reviews of student progress. (CFR 2.12)

Undergraduate and Graduate 
• More systematic collection of data to assess the extent to which our services meet the needs of our students, including intended learning outcomes, and using the results for improvement.

(CFR 2.11, 2.13) 

2. Looking overall at the quality and effectiveness of the institution’s data gathering and systems to support the review process, what are institutional strengths under this
Standard?

With respect to Standard 2 CRF’s, the evaluations above were made on the basis of available and informative evidence. This includes data/information on academic program outcomes assessment and 
student success metrics (at least at undergraduate level), demographics etc.   

3. Looking again at the overall quality and effectiveness of the institution’s data gathering and systems, what are areas to be addressed or improved under this Standard?

• Graduate assessment: At the graduate level, we are still building systematic review processes and data sets as programs move to standalone status. We are working toward program-level
dashboards.

• Undergraduate: strengthening our ability to further disaggregate data to explain and examine patterns in IRDS data.
• Undergraduate and Graduate, Academic and Co-Curricular:  We are working to improve our ability to easily track assessment activity and aggregate results at levels above the program/unit to

inform planning and decision making. Data exist but need to be readily available to a broader array of constituents and would benefit with being coupled to other metrics (e.g. student success)
to provide a holistic picture of student learning, student success, and support for these core institutional functions.

28



Review under WSCUC Standards

Provide the institution’s consensus rating for columns 3 and 4; add comments as appropriate 
in column 5.  For un-shaded cells in Column 6, delete text and provide links or references to 
evidence in support of findings. Column 7 is for staff and teams to verify documentation and 
for teams to comments on evidence. 

Self-Review Rating         Importance to address at this time    
1= We do this well; area of strength for us A:U= High priority – Urgent 
2= Aspects of this need our attention   A:OA = High priority – Ongoing attention needed 

in light of 2020-related growth. 
3= This item needs significant development B= Medium priority 
0= Does not apply C= Lower priority 

0= Does not apply 

Institutional Information 

Institution:  University of California, Merced 

Type of Review: 
 Comprehensive for Reaffirmation

Date of Submission: ____/_____/_______ 
Mo Day Year 

Institutional Contact: Laura Martin, ALO 

Standard 3. Developing and Applying Resources and Organizational Structures to Ensure Quality and Sustainability The institution sustains its operations 
and supports the achievement of its educational objectives through investments in human, physical, fiscal, technological, and information resources and through an appropriate 
and effective set of organizational and decision-making structures. These key resources and organizational structures promote the achievement of institutional purposes and 
educational objectives and create a high-quality environment for learning. 

Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importanc
e to 

Address 
(4) 

Comments 
(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 

Faculty and Staff 
3.1 The institution employs faculty and staff with 

substantial and continuing commitment to the 
institution. The faculty and staff are sufficient in 
number, professional qualification, and diversity and to 
achieve the institution’s educational objectives, 
establish and oversee academic policies, and ensure 
the integrity and continuity of its academic and co-
curricular programs wherever and however delivered. 
X 2.1, 2.2b 

The institution has a faculty 
staffing plan that ensures that all 
faculty roles and responsibilities 
are fulfilled and includes a 
sufficient number of full-time 
faculty members with 
appropriate backgrounds by 
discipline and degree level. 

1 A:OA The institution engages in fair hiring 
practices to ensure diversity in staff and 
faculty recruitment efforts.  Diversity 
efforts are based on Affirmative Action 
Goals per the institutions Affirmative 
Action Plan. 
While we are confident in the fulfillment 
of this core deliverable, it remains a 
continuous high priority to maintain 
adherence to and delivery of a 
consistently high standard. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review. 

29



Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importanc
e to 

Address 
(4) 

Comments 
(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 

3.2 Faculty and staff recruitment, hiring, orientation, 
workload, incentives, and evaluation practices are 
aligned with institutional purposes and educational 
objectives. Evaluation is consistent with best practices 
in performance appraisal, including multisource 
feedback and appropriate peer review. Faculty 
evaluation processes are systematic and are used to 
improve teaching and learning. 
X 1.7, 4.3, 4.4 

2 A:OA The institution has established policies 
to ensure recruitment and hiring of 
faculty and staff are aligned with the 
mission. 

HR’s Strategic Plan recognizes the long-
range smart growth plans as detailed in 
the UCM’s Workforce Planning exercise 
so that all hiring, training and 
development is integrated around a 
smart growth model to leverage people, 
skills and technology in the most 
efficient, effective and self-fulfilling way 
possible with continued focused 
dialogue anchored in the University’s 
mission. 

Once on-boarded, the staff are 
evaluated annually with emphasize on 
essential functions, goals, 
achievements, core competencies, and 
professional development needs.  
Performance management training for 
supervisors is offered annually.  
Enhancement to our staff performance 
appraisal system, coupled with 
mandatory training and a reemphasis on 
overall employee training and 
development is a key component of the 
new HR Strategic Plan. 
Significant changes to streamline the 
appraisal process are underway.  
Institution offers cash and non-cash 
awards to recognize exceptional 
performance and innovation.     

Faculty Handbooks 

Academic Personnel 
Manual (APM) and 
Merced Academic 
Personnel Policies 
and Procedures 
(MAPP) 

UC Policy PPSM 20 
Recruitment 

PPSM 23 - 
Performance 
Management Policy, 
Performance 
Management 
Guidelines, 
Performance 
Appraisals, 
Employee & 
Supervisor 
Resources, Halogen. 

STAR & Innovation 
Awards 

30

http://academicpersonnel.ucmerced.edu/resources/2014-2015-faculty-handbooks
http://www.ucop.edu/academic-personnel-programs/academic-personnel-policy/index.html
http://www.ucop.edu/academic-personnel-programs/academic-personnel-policy/index.html
http://academicpersonnel.ucmerced.edu/policies/merced-academic-personnel-policies-procedures
http://academicpersonnel.ucmerced.edu/policies/merced-academic-personnel-policies-procedures
http://academicpersonnel.ucmerced.edu/policies/merced-academic-personnel-policies-procedures
http://academicpersonnel.ucmerced.edu/policies/merced-academic-personnel-policies-procedures
http://policy.ucop.edu/doc/4010393/PPSM-20
http://policy.ucop.edu/doc/4010393/PPSM-20
http://policy.ucop.edu/doc/4010397/PPSM-23
http://policy.ucop.edu/doc/4010397/PPSM-23
http://policy.ucop.edu/doc/4010397/PPSM-23
https://hr.ucmerced.edu/files/page/documents/perf_mgt_guide_0.pdf
https://hr.ucmerced.edu/files/page/documents/perf_mgt_guide_0.pdf
https://hr.ucmerced.edu/files/page/documents/perf_mgt_guide_0.pdf
http://www.ucop.edu/local-human-resources/_files/policies/ppsm/ppsm23.pdf
http://www.ucop.edu/local-human-resources/_files/policies/ppsm/ppsm23.pdf
http://hr.ucmerced.edu/
http://hr.ucmerced.edu/
http://hr.ucmerced.edu/
http://hr.ucmerced.edu/news/2015/new-online-performance-management-system-0
https://hr.ucmerced.edu/STAR-overview
http://chancellor.ucmerced.edu/innovation-awards
http://chancellor.ucmerced.edu/innovation-awards


3.3 The institution maintains appropriate and sufficiently 
supported faculty and staff development activities 
designed to improve teaching, learning, and 
assessment of learning outcomes. 
X 2.1, 2.2b, 4.4 

The institution engages full-time, 
non-tenure-track, adjunct, and 
part-time faculty members 
in such processes as 
assessment, program review, 
and faculty development. 

2 A:OA Faculty development in support of teaching, 
learning and assessment of student learning 
outcomes is provided in several ways: through 
programming and resources provided by the 
Center for Research on Teaching Excellence 
(CRTE),) in the Office of Undergraduate Education 
and the Academic Personnel Office, and in small 
part by the Office of Institutional Assessment. 
Faculty work on program assessment is supported 
by assessment specialists, one per school and one 
at the graduate level.  CRTE resources are 
available to all faculty, lecturing and Senate. They 
are also available to staff and complement 
professional development opportunities in 
assessment offered by the Division of Student 
Affairs.   

At an institutional level, the Periodic Review 
Oversight Committee (PROC) is charged with 
advisory and oversight responsibilities for 
academic and administrative assessment, annual 
and periodic. This includes recommending 
appropriate resourcing in support of assessment, 
and facilitating processes by which assessment 
practices act to align resources with academic 
mission, campus strategic plans, and resources.   

A score of “2” is given for several reasons: (1) in 
part because the CRTE is undergoing periodic 
review in spring 2015, including an examination of 
“sufficient support”. (2) It also reflects the need to 
better integrate engagement in assessment (as 
teaching at course and program levels) into the 
tenure and promotion process. (3) Also, while 
lecturing faculty are involved in program review, 
their involvement in annual program assessment 
varies across programs. (4) Under PROC’s 
guidance, we are still developing assessment 
processes that facilitate alignment of educational 
and administrative activities and resourcing with 
campus goals. The “A” score reflects the need to 
continue to attend to these needs this as the 
campus faculty numbers grow rapidly over the 
next five years in keeping with 2020 planning. 

Policies, budgets, or 
other indicators of 
faculty development 
programs. 

- Center for Research 
on Teaching 
Excellence Faculty 
Development 
Services 

- Non-Senate Faculty 
access to 
Instructional Support 
in MOU 

- Assessment 
specialist services for 
faculty and staff 

- PPSM 50 
Professional 
Development Policy 
for Staff Members 

- Professional 
Development 
Programs for Staff 
Members 

- Lynda.com Access 
for staff and faculty 

Fiscal, Physical, and Information Resources 

31

http://crte.ucmerced.edu/faculty_services
http://crte.ucmerced.edu/faculty_services
http://crte.ucmerced.edu/faculty_services
http://ucnet.universityofcalifornia.edu/labor/bargaining-units/ix/docs/ix_2011-2015_08_instructional-support.pdf
http://ucnet.universityofcalifornia.edu/labor/bargaining-units/ix/docs/ix_2011-2015_08_instructional-support.pdf
http://ucnet.universityofcalifornia.edu/labor/bargaining-units/ix/docs/ix_2011-2015_08_instructional-support.pdf
http://ucnet.universityofcalifornia.edu/labor/bargaining-units/ix/docs/ix_2011-2015_08_instructional-support.pdf
http://assessment.ucmerced.edu/node/67
http://assessment.ucmerced.edu/node/67
http://policy.ucop.edu/doc/4010408
http://hr.ucmerced.edu/training/programs
http://hr.ucmerced.edu/training/programs
http://hr.ucmerced.edu/training/programs
http://hr.ucmerced.edu/training/lynda


3.4 The institution is financially stable and has unqualified 
independent financial audits and resources sufficient to 
ensure long-term viability. Resource planning and 
development include realistic budgeting, enrollment 
management, and diversification of revenue sources. 
Resource planning is integrated with all other 
institutional planning. Resources are aligned with 
educational purposes and objectives. 
X 1.1, 1.2, 2.10, 4.6, 4.7 

The institution has functioned 
without an operational deficit for 
at least three years. If the 
institution has an accumulated 
deficit, it should provide a 
detailed explanation and a 
realistic plan for eliminating it. 

2 A:OA UC Merced’s budget is based on estimated 
revenue expected to be received which is 
reviewed and adjusted to actuals throughout 
the year. Enrollment management is done in 
coordination with the University of California 
system as a whole and is reconciled against the 
long range plan for UC Merced. A tone at the 
top has been established and communicated 
campus-wide regarding current and future 
budget alignment with our Academic Strategic 
Plans, workforce planning initiatives, and our 
long range 2020 Project, which is a long-term 
strategic plan to grow the campus over the 
next 5 years.  A long range financial plan has 
been developed to forecast the financial impact 
of the aforementioned plans.  The financial 
plan outlines the targets that must be met for 
the campus to achieve financial sustainability. 

The diversification of revenue sources has been 
the most difficult in that the campus is in 
growth mode and many of the sources are not 
eligible to be used for capital use.  Revenues 
received totaled $224.8 million from a variety 
of sources from student tuition and fees, which 
accounted for 23% of total revenues, State 
Educational Appropriations from the State of 
California (47% of total revenue), auxiliary 
enterprises (10%), Grants and contracts (8% 
of total revenue), and other sources. State 
Educational Appropriations requires advance 
approval from the State of California before it 
can be used for capital purposes but the 
amount eligible is capped. As a result, a 
majority of the amounts are not eligible for 
capital use. Likewise, grants and contracts are 
typically not eligible for capital use. 
Additionally, over the last three years, the 
Campus has shown positive increases in the 
net position of the campus (i.e. no operational 
deficits). 

While individual campuses within the University 
of California do not issue stand-alone financial 
statements, the University of California System-
wide maintains a net position (i.e. equity) of 
$11.3 billion with a cash and investment 
portfolio totaling $21.6 billion. Based on the 

Audits submitted with 
Annual Report. 

Also evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
in Component 7: 
Sustainability. 

32



official records of the UC, UC Merced share of 
total cash and investments totaled $171 million 
with a positive net position balance of $56 
million as of June 2014. The UC, on a 
consolidated basis, received an unqualified 
opinion for the fiscal year then ended June 30, 
2014 from its independent accounting firm 
KPMG. 

33



3.5 The institution provides access to information and 
technology resources sufficient in scope, quality, 
currency, and kind at physical sites and online, as 
appropriate, to support its academic offerings and the 
research and scholarship of its faculty, staff, and 
students. These information resources, services, and 
facilities are consistent with the institution’s 
educational objectives and are aligned with student 
learning outcomes.  
X 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 

The institution provides training 
and support for faculty members 
who use technology in 
instruction. Institutions offering 
graduate programs have 
sufficient fiscal, physical, 
information, and technology 
resources and structures to 
sustain these programs and to 
create and maintain a graduate-
level academic culture. 

3 A:U UCM lacks sufficient or dedicated staffing 
and staff skill availability to support faculty 
in online course development, classroom use 
of technology and the use of a research 
cyberinfrastructure. As well, the content 
production and data delivery infrastructure is 
dated and lacks robustness, performance 
reliability, and standards-based installation 
and lifecycle. However, a new cloud-based 
LMS was launched in Jan 2015 that provides 
a solid foundation for the delivery of online 
course content. For spring semester 2015, 
approximately 376 faculty have activated an 
LMS course account as all grade submissions 
occur via this tool. At present five faculty are 
designing online courses per the UCOP ITLI 
funding and are using resources from other 
UC campus’ for course and content 
development.  

Funding is in place to launch a multiyear 
upgrade of the campus network beginning 
April 2015. The IT Strategic Workforce Plan 
includes a request for a Director of Academic 
and Emerging Technology (Phase 1, 
launched in February 2015), along with a 
request for 10 staff lines to support content 
and course development and classroom 
technology support (Phase 2). The following 
2 Goals are specified in the IT Strategic plan 
and scheduled to launch with the conclusion 
of Phase 1 of the IT workforce plan and the 
hiring of a Director of Academic and 
Emerging Technology: (2.1.5) Build and 
execute a classroom technology roadmap 
and (3.1.) Define vision for technology for 
teaching and learning. A Cyberinfrastructure 
external review occurred in March 2015 and 
we are waiting for final recommendations. 
Two proposals were submitted on 22 March, 
2015 to NSF Solicitation 14-521 CC*DNI 
(Campus Infrastructure - Data, Networking, 
and Innovation) for funding to support 
faculty research computing needs. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review. 

34



Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importanc
e to 

Address 
(4) 

Comments 
(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 

Organization Structures and Decision-Making Processes 
3.6  The institution’s leadership, at all levels, is 

characterized by integrity, high performance, 
appropriate responsibility, and accountability. 

1 C The institution has assembled a leadership team 
that is committed to high performance goals and 
aspirations as evidenced by the launch of the 
Academic Focusing Initiative, workforce planning 
and the 2020 Project. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review. 

3.7 The institution’s organizational structures and decision-
making processes are clear and consistent with its 
purposes, support effective decision making, and place 
priority on sustaining institutional capacity and 
educational effectiveness. 

The institution establishes clear 
roles, responsibilities, and lines 
of authority. 

2 A:OA The institution has well defined organizational 
structures to facilitate shared governance as 
evidenced by the establishment of the Periodic 
Annual Review Committee (PROC).  PROC is a 
committee, co-chaired by the Provost and the Vice 
Chair of the Academic Senate, includes faculty and 
administrative representation. It was established 
to consolidate Academic and Administrative 
Reviews to reaffirm the shared governance 
concept.  Under the leadership of the Vice 
Chancellor for Business and Administrative 
Services, the university’s administration has 
undertaken a comprehensive workforce planning 
process to ensure the organizational structure 
facilitates efficient service and effective decision 
support structures. 

One area of potential improvement concerns the 
duties and responsibilities of Bylaw Unit chairs.  
Currently, unit chairs have responsibility for many 
duties outlined in APM 245, but the final authority 
for decision-making in those areas rests with the 
school deans.  Over the next several years, the 
university could evolve to better align 
responsibility with authority for functions that 
reside respectively with the deans and unit chairs. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
in Component 7: 
Sustainability. 

3.8 The institution has a full-time chief executive officer 
and a chief financial officer whose primary or full-time 
responsibilities are to the institution. In addition, the 
institution has a sufficient number of other qualified 
administrators to provide effective educational 
leadership and management. 

1 C The institution has assembled a solid leadership 
team who display the ability to provide effective 
educational leadership and management.  The 
Chancellor serves as the full-time chief executive 
officer and Vice Chancellor of Planning and Budget 
serves as the chief financial officer.  Both are 
accountable to the campus and serve as part of 
the Senior Management Group of the University of 
California. 

Position Descriptions 
for CEO, CFO. 

35



3.9 The institution has an independent governing board or 
similar authority that, consistent with its legal and 
fiduciary authority, exercises appropriate oversight 
over institutional integrity, policies, and ongoing 
operations, including hiring and evaluating the chief 
executive officer. 
X 1.5 – 1.7  

The governing body comprises 
members with the diverse 
qualifications required to govern 
an institution of higher learning. 
It regularly engages in Self-
review and training to enhance 
its effectiveness. 

1 0 The University is governed by The Regents, 
which under Article IX, Section 9 of the 
California Constitution has "full powers of 
organization and governance" subject only 
to very specific areas of legislative control. 
The article states that "the university shall 
be entirely independent of all political and 
sectarian influence and kept free therefrom 
in the appointment of its Regents and in the 
administration of its affairs." There is an 
annual review of the CEO by conducted by 
the President. 

University of California 
Board of Regents, 
membership and 
biographies. 

Board of Regents 
Standing Committees and 
Membership 

Bylaws of the Board of 
Regents 

Academic Senate Policy 
on Review of Chancellors 

3.10 The institution’s faculty exercises effective academic 
leadership and acts consistently to ensure that both 
academic quality and the institution’s educational 
purposes and character are sustained. 
X 2.1, 2.4, 2.5, 4.3, 4.4 

The institution clearly defines the 
governance roles, rights, and 
responsibilities of all categories 
of full- and part-time faculty. 

1 C The institution has established governance 
structures through the Standing Orders of the 
Regents that outline the responsibilities clearly.  In 
addition, the structures are also outlined in the 
Bylaws of the UCM Academic Senate.  

Faculty governing body 
charges, bylaws and 
authority:  

Standing Orders of the 
Regents of the UC 

Bylaws of the UC 
Academic Senate 

UC Merced Academic 
Senate 

36

http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/governance/bylaws/bl5.html%235.1
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/about/members-and-advisors/
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/about/members-and-advisors/
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/about/members-and-advisors/
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/about/members-and-advisors/
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/about/committees.html
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/about/committees.html
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/about/committees.html
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/governance/bylaws/
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/governance/bylaws/
http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/resources/Chancellor.review.2000.pdf
http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/resources/Chancellor.review.2000.pdf
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/governance/standing-orders/
http://regents.universityofcalifornia.edu/governance/standing-orders/
http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/manual/bltoc.html
http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/manual/bltoc.html
http://senate.ucmerced.edu/
http://senate.ucmerced.edu/


Synthesis/Reflections on Standard Three 

1. After completing this analysis, what are the two or three most important issues that emerged from the self-review of this Standard?

• While UC Merced has outlined clear roles and responsibilities for its administration and administrative structures, there is a need to further define the academic administrative structure.
UCM has strategically decided to establish a multi-disciplinary structure; however, there is need to have some clear lines of responsibility in the context of the traditional departmental
structure while still preserving the unique nature and synergistic benefits of a multi-disciplinary organization.

• The institution has deployed several strategic initiatives for mapping out the future of UCM through its Strategic Academic Focusing Initiative, the Workforce Planning initiative and the 2020
Project (Physical Planning initiative).  The development of the Campus Financial plan consolidates the work of the aforementioned plans into a financial viability and sustainability plan.

• Given that UC Merced prides itself on being the first university of the 21st century, the need for additional support of IT infrastructure and workforce plan was highlighted as critical area for
improvement.  UCM lacks sufficient/dedicated staff with the skills to support faculty in online course development, classroom use of technology and the use of a research
cyberinfrastructure. As well, the content production and data delivery infrastructure is dated and lacks robustness, performance reliability, and standards-based installation and lifecycle.
While funding is in place to launch a multiyear upgrade of the campus network beginning April 2015, there is still a need to address the workforce needs for IT.

2. Looking overall at the quality and effectiveness of the institution’s data gathering and systems to support the review process, what are institutional strengths under this
Standard?

An area of strength, showcased in this process, is that the institution employs faculty and staff with substantial and continuing commitment to the institution.  Through its
hiring practices, and commitment to excellence in teaching, the institution employs a diverse faculty and staff and it provides for continued professional development.  Also the
institution has launched a several long range planning initiatives to ensure that the campus is able to deliver its mission of teaching and research through excellence in
academia, workforce and physical resources.  While these plans are still in development, the institution plans to integrate the plans for a comprehensive deployment in the
near future.

3. Looking again at the overall quality and effectiveness of the institution’s data gathering and systems, what are areas to be addressed or improved under this Standard?

One area that is both a high priority for the institution, and needs significant development, is the provision and access to information and technology resources.  This 
important focus area is linked to our institutional needs to enhance the institution’s ability to utilize data gathered to improve programmatic success.  As mentioned in the 
review Standards 2, and 4, the UC Merced generally has effective data gathering processes; however, data resides in a significant number of data systems, which makes the 
process of enabling cross-referenced data analytics challenging.  Therefore, the consolidation of data systems to enable effective development of the institution’s data 
warehousing capabilities are also important. 

37



Review under WSCUC Standards

Provide the institution’s consensus rating for columns 3 and 4; add comments as appropriate 
in column 5.  For un-shaded cells in Column 6, delete text and provide links or references to 
evidence in support of findings. Column 7 is for staff and teams to verify documentation and 
for teams to comments on evidence. 

Self-Review Rating         Importance to address at this time    
1= We do this well; area of strength for us A:U= High priority – Urgent 
2= Aspects of this need our attention   A:OA = High priority – Ongoing attention needed 

in light of 2020-related growth. 
3= This item needs significant development B= Medium priority 
0= Does not apply C= Lower priority 

0= Does not apply 
 

Institutional Information 

Institution:  University of California, Merced 

Type of Review: 
 Comprehensive for Reaffirmation

Date of Submission: ____/_____/_______ 
Mo Day Year 

Institutional Contact: Laura Martin, ALO 

Standard 4. Creating an Organization Committed to Quality Assurance, Institutional Learning, and Improvement 
The institution engages in sustained, evidence-based, and participatory self-reflection about how  effectively it is accomplishing its purposes and achieving its educational 
objectives. The institution considers the changing environment of higher education in envisioning its future. These activities inform both institutional planning and systematic 
evaluations of educational effectiveness. The results of institutional inquiry, research, and data collection are used to establish priorities, to plan, and to improve quality and 
effectiveness. 

Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importance to 
Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
Quality Assurance Processes 

4.1 The institution employs a deliberate set of 
quality-assurance processes in both academic 
and non-academic areas, including new 
curriculum and program approval processes, 
periodic program review, assessment of student 
learning, and other forms of ongoing evaluation. 
These processes include: collecting, analyzing, 
and interpreting data; tracking learning results 
over time; using comparative data from external 
sources; and improving structures, services, 
processes, curricula, pedagogy, and learning 
results. 
X 2.7, 2.10 

2 A:OA UC Merced employs a set of quality 
assurance process. Examples include 
new curriculum approval process, new 
program approval process, periodic 
program review, teaching evaluation by 
students, etc. However, the 
dissemination of information is limited.  
Additionally, how to meet the academic 
services and curriculum development 
needs to reflect our students or our 
growth, is an area for improvement.  

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
in Component 6: 
Quality Assurance and 
Component 7: 
Sustainability. 

38



Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importance to 
Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
4.2 The institution has institutional research capacity 

consistent with its purposes and characteristics. 
Data are disseminated internally and externally 
in a timely manner, and analyzed, interpreted, 
and incorporated in institutional review, 
planning, and decision-making. Periodic reviews 
are conducted to ensure the effectiveness of the 
institutional research function and the suitability 
and usefulness of the data generated. 
X 1.2, 2.10 

2 B In 2014, Institutional Research and 
Decision Support underwent periodic 
review with a focus on the development 
of a collaborative service. There is a 
sense that data are generated, but data 
need to be made available to all faculty 
and staff in a timely manner, and clear 
pathways to acquire data need to be 
developed.  

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
in Component 6: 
Quality Assurance. 

Institutional Learning and Improvement 

4.3 Leadership at all levels, including faculty, staff, 
and administration, is committed to 
improvement based on the results of inquiry, 
evidence, and evaluation. Assessment of 
teaching, learning, and the campus 
environment—in support of academic and co-
curricular objectives—is undertaken, used for 
improvement, and incorporated into institutional 
planning processes. 
X 2.2 – 2.6 

The institution has clear, well-
established policies and 
practices—for gathering, 
analyzing, and interpreting 
information—that create a culture 
of evidence and improvement. 

2 A:U Improvements as a result of inquiry, 
evidence and evaluation are not readily 
implemented, as more focus is placed 
on research, it takes precedent over 
assessment of teaching.  Better 
evidence of co-curricular effectiveness 
needs to be developed beyond 
satisfaction and participation data.   

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
through Component 3: 
Degree Programs, 
Component 4: 
Educational Quality, 
Component 6: Quality 
Assurance, and 
Component 7: 
Sustainability. 

39



Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importance to 
Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
4.4 The institution, with significant faculty 

involvement, engages in ongoing inquiry into the 
processes of teaching and learning, and the 
conditions and practices that ensure that the 
standards of performance established by the 
institution are being achieved. The faculty and 
other educators take responsibility for evaluating 
the effectiveness of teaching and learning 
processes and uses the results for improvement 
of student learning and success. The findings 
from such inquiries are applied to the design and 
improvement of curricula, pedagogy, and 
assessment methodology. 
X 2.2 – 2.6 

Periodic analysis of grades and 
evaluation procedures are 
conducted to assess the rigor and 
effectiveness of grading policies 
and practices. 

1 A:OA UCM has a strong, faculty-owned, academic 
assessment infrastructure, growing 
understanding of practice and use of results 
to inform teaching and curriculum. The 
teaching evaluation performed by students is 
a good process for faculty to sustain or 
improve their teaching quality. Curriculum 
committees, Undergraduate Council and 
Graduate Council together play good roles in 
keeping our courses in high quality. 
Evaluation of programs is achieved through 
two processes: (1) student evaluations, in 
which student feedback provides a basis for 
change in the classroom regarding 
improvements in curriculum and pedagogy; 
(2) coupled annual program learning 
outcomes assessment and program review 
processes that focus on student learning 
results in support of program improvement. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
in Component 6: 
Quality Assurance and 
Component 7: 
Sustainability. 

4.5 Appropriate stakeholders, including alumni, 
employers, practitioners, students, and others 
designated by the institution, are regularly 
involved in the assessment and alignment of 
educational programs. 
X 2.6, 2.7 

2 A:OA The School of Engineering has appointed 
Board of Advisors comprised of professionals 
that provide guidance to the educational 
programs. UCM’s alumni population is now 
sufficiently large and advanced to contribute 
to advisory boards and they should be added 
as a means of connecting UCM”s growing 
campus community to external stakeholders. 
Plans to develop other advisory boards are 
underway. Both graduate and undergraduate 
students have voiced concern that their 
request for courses and program topics go 
unheard. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
in Component 6: 
Quality Assurance and 
Component 7: 
Sustainability. 

40



Criteria for Review 
(1) 

Guidelines 
(2) 

Self-Review 
Rating 

(3) 

Importance to 
Address 

(4) 
Comments 

(5) 

Evidence 
(Un-shaded only) 

(6) 

Team/Staff 
Verification 

(7) 
4.6 The institution periodically engages its multiple 

constituencies, including the governing board, 
faculty, staff, and others, in institutional 
reflection and planning processes that are based 
on the examination of data and evidence. These 
processes assess the institution’s strategic 
position, articulate priorities, examine the 
alignment of its purposes, core functions, and 
resources, and define the future direction of the 
institution. 
X 1.1, 1.3 

2 B Continued growth of the university requires 
the institution to continually reconsider its 
direction, which requires input from faculty, 
staff, and administrators.    While the rapid 
growth and pace of decision making often 
limits the frequency of engaging all these 
constituencies, improvement in campus-wide 
engagement in planning is needed. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
in Component 6: 
Quality Assurance and 
Component 7: 
Sustainability. 

4.7. Within the context of its mission and structural 
and financial realities, the institution considers 
changes that are currently taking place and are 
anticipated to take place within the institution 
and higher education environment as part of its 
planning, new program development, and 
resource allocation. 

2 A:OA This process needs to occur throughout the 
continued rapid growth of the university. For 
example, the recent curtailment of 
undergraduate admissions was a smart 
response given the space and financial 
restrictions given the current growth rate. 

Evaluated during 
comprehensive review 
in Component 6: 
Quality Assurance and 
Component 7: 
Sustainability. 

41



Synthesis/Reflections on Standard Four 

1. After completing this analysis, what are the two or three most important issues that emerged from the self-review of this Standard?

• Effectively using the data collected to inform decisions, from course improvements, to program updates, to campus planning.
• Engaging the multiple constituency groups to both provide valuable data points on the institution and to help inform strategic planning.
• Rapid growth and development of the campus requires thoughtful, data informed planning to best direct new programs and growth of current efforts.

2. Looking overall at the quality and effectiveness of the institution’s data gathering and systems to support the review process, what are institutional strengths
under this Standard?

• The structures are in place to engage various constituency groups.
• The tools exist and data are collected on all levels of the campus experience.
• The processes to perform annual assessment review and periodic program review are in place and help ensure on-going quality review of academic

programs, student services, and administrative operations.

3. Looking again at the overall quality and effectiveness of the institution’s data gathering and systems, what are areas to be addressed or improved under this
Standard?

• The paths to access institutional data points are not apparent.
• The lack of transparency on data informed decision-making generates skepticism that such activity occurs.
• The engagement of campus constituents in planning needs to be broadened and deepened.

42



43

http://www.ucop.edu/academic-personnel-programs/academic-personnel-policy/policies-under-review/index.html


44



45



U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  C A L I F O R N I A ,  A C A D E M I C  S E N A T E

BERKELEY • DAVIS • IRVINE • LOS ANGELES • MERCED • RIVERSIDE • SAN DIEGO • SAN FRANCISCO SANTA BARBARA •  SANTA CRUZ 

Mary Gilly        Chair of the Assembly of the Academic Senate 
Telephone: (510) 987-0711  Faculty Representative to the Regents 
Fax: (510) 763-0309 University of California 
Email: mary.gilly@ucop.edu 1111 Franklin Street, 12th Floor 

Oakland, California 94607-5200 

March 3, 2015 

SUSAN CARLSON, VICE PROVOST 
ACADEMIC PERSONNEL 

Re: Revision to APM 210.1.d 

Dear Susan, 

The Academic Council has unanimously endorsed the attached revision to APM 210.1.d. We believe 
the new revision addresses the concerns expressed in the recent systemwide review, clarifies the 
intent of the language, and meets the faculty’s overall goals for the policy. We request a final 
systemwide review prior to issuance of the language.  

I will briefly summarize the recent history of this effort and the process and rationale behind the new 
revision. In spring 2013, Council provisionally approved a revision of APM 210.1.d proposed by the 
University Committee on Academic Personnel (UCAP) and the University Committee on 
Affirmative Action (UCAAD) that was intended to clarify how academic personnel review 
committees should assess faculty contributions that promote equal opportunity and diversity. Your 
office distributed the revision for systemwide Senate review in June 2014, as part of a package of 
other APM revisions. 

The systemwide Senate response to the wording of the revision was mixed. While some thought that 
the revision successfully eliminated the ambiguities of APM 210.1.d in its current form, others found 
that it actually increased the ambiguities. In December 2014, I asked you to maintain the existing 
language until faculty could agree on improved wording that clarifies the issues raised in the 
systemwide review. Subsequently, I charged a working group consisting of the chairs of BOARS, 
UCAAD, UCAP, UCEP, and the UCSD division to discuss improvements to the wording based on 
the proposed revision and the systemwide responses.  

The working group based its efforts on an understanding that systemwide respondents strongly 
supported the aims of the spring 2013 revision. There was a broad systemwide consensus on two 
points especially: first, that faculty efforts in promoting equal opportunity and diversity should be 
evaluated and credited on the same basis as other contributions, but should not be understood as 
constituting a “fourth leg” of evaluation, along with research and creative activity, teaching, and 
service; and second, that these contributions should not receive more credit than other contributions 
simply on the basis of their subject matter.  

The chief objections were to the third sentence of the revision, which states that contributions to 

46

http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/reports/RLP_SCarlsonreAPM2101d_FINAL.pdf
http://senate.universityofcalifornia.edu/reports/MG_SC_APM133210220760.pdf


equal opportunity and diversity “should be given the same weight in the evaluation of the 
candidate’s qualifications during Academic Personnel actions as any other contributions in these 
areas.” According to Davis, for example, this sentence “appears to suggest that a fourth category of 
evaluation is to be initiated,” while the San Diego CAP saw the sentence as implying “that 
contributions to diversity are in fact necessary to a complete file and hence that a file without them 
will be assessed as having weaknesses.” Some members of Council seconded these objections.  

Keeping in mind that the original intention of APM 210.1.d was to ensure that faculty efforts in 
promoting equal opportunity and diversity receive their proper credit in the academic review 
process, the working group focused on emphasizing this key principle of recognition in APM 
210.1.d. The group unanimously agreed upon an emendation that takes a somewhat more restrained 
approach to the current language of APM 210.1.d than the initial revision had. Only the second and 
the final sentences of the current language are altered in the new emendation. The second sentence 
now makes clear that contributions to equal opportunity and diversity “should be given due 
recognition in the academic personnel process, and they should be evaluated and credited in the 
same way as other faculty achievements.” In the final sentence, the emendation refines a further aim 
of the revision, which was to stress that the mentoring and advising of students from 
underrepresented and underserved groups should receive proper credit also. In place of the revision’s 
misleading formulation that the “mentoring and advising of diverse students or faculty members are 
to be encouraged and given due recognition in the teaching or service categories of the Academic 
Personnel Process,” the emendation states that the “mentoring and advising of students and faculty 
members, particularly from underrepresented and underserved populations, should be given due 
credit in the teaching or service categories of the academic personnel process.” 

As you mentioned to Council in January, APM 210.1.d has become a national model for universities 
seeking to recognize and credit meritorious contributions that work to reconcile inequalities. I am 
confident that the new revision represents the Senate’s best effort to clarify the intent of the language 
and strengthen a key principle shared by faculty and administrators – that diversity functions as a 
vital component in the continued excellence of the University of California and the quality of its 
faculty.  

Sincerely, 

Mary Gilly, Chair 
Academic Council 
 

Encl.  

Cc:  Academic Council 
Executive Director Baxter 
Policy Manager Lockwood 
Senate Executive Directors 

2 

47



Academic Council Recommended Emendation to APM 210-1-d 

Approved February 25, 2015 

210-1  Instructions to Review Committees Which Advise on Actions Concerning Appointees in 
the Professor and Corresponding Series 
…  

d. Criteria for Appointment, Promotion, and Appraisal

… 

The University of California is committed to excellence and equity in every facet of its mission. 
Contributions in all areas of faculty achievement that promote equal opportunity and diversity 
should be given due recognition in the academic personnel process, and they should be evaluated 
and credited in the same way as other faculty achievements.  Teaching, research, professional and 
public service contributions that promote diversity and equal opportunity are to be encouraged and 
given recognition in the evaluation of the candidate’s qualifications.  These contributions to diversity 
and equal opportunity can take a variety of forms, including efforts to advance equitable access to 
education, public service that addresses the needs of California’s diverse population, or research in a 
scholar’s area of expertise that highlights inequalities.  Mentoring and advising of students and or 
new faculty members, particularly from underrepresented and underserved populations, should be 
given due credit are to be encouraged and given recognition in the teaching or service categories of 
the academic personnel process academic personnel actions. 

… 

3 

48



APPOINTMENT AND PROMOTION  APM - 210 
Review and Appraisal Committees DRAFT 

210-1 Instructions to Review Committees Which Advise on Actions Concerning 
Appointees in the Professor and Corresponding Series 

….. 

d. Criteria for Appointment, Promotion, and Appraisal

….. 

The University of California is committed to excellence and equity in every 

facet of its mission.   Contributions in all areas of faculty achievement that 

promote equal opportunity and diversity should be given due recognition in 

the academic personnel process, and they should be evaluated and credited in 

the same way as other faculty achievements.  These contributions to diversity 

and equal opportunity can take a variety of forms including efforts to 

advance equitable access to education, public service that addresses the 

needs of California’s diverse population, or research in a scholar’s area of 

expertise that highlights inequalities.  Mentoring and advising of students 

and faculty members, particularly from underrepresented and underserved 

populations should be given due credit in the teaching or service categories 

of the academic personnel process. 

….. 

Rev. 3/17/15 Page 1 

49



APPOINTMENT AND PROMOTION  APM - 210 
Review and Appraisal Committees DRAFT 

210-1 Instructions to Review Committees Which Advise on Actions Concerning 
Appointees in the Professor and Corresponding Series 

….. 

d. Criteria for Appointment, Promotion, and Appraisal

….. 

The University of California is committed to excellence and equity in every 

facet of its mission.  Teaching, research, professional and public service 

Ccontributions in all areas of faculty achievement that promote diversity and 

equal opportunity and diversity are to be encouraged and should be given 

due recognition in the academic personnel process,evaluation of the 

candidate’s qualifications and they should be evaluated and credited in the 

same way as other faculty achievements.  These contributions to diversity 

and equal opportunity can take a variety of forms including efforts to 

advance equitable access to education, public service that addresses the 

needs of California’s diverse population, or research in a scholar’s area of 

expertise that highlights inequalities.  Mentoring and advising of students 

andor new faculty members, particularly from underrepresented and 

underserved populations  are to be encouraged and should be given due 

creditrecognition in the teaching or service categories of the academic 

personnel processactions. 

….. 

Rev. 7/1/053/17/15 Page 1 

50



VERSION CIRCULATED FOR SYSTEMWIDE REVIEW 
MAY – DECEMBER 2014 

PROVIDED AS BACKGROUND ONLY 

APPOINTMENT AND PROMOTION  APM - 210 
Review and Appraisal Committees DRAFT 

210-1 Instructions to Review Committees Which Advise on Actions Concerning 
Appointees in the Professor and Corresponding Series 

….. 

d. Criteria for Appointment, Promotion, and Appraisal

….. 

The University of California is committed to excellence and equity in every 

facet of its mission. Contributions in Tteaching, research and other creative 

work, professional activity, and University and public service contributions 

that promote equal opportunity and diversity and equal opportunity are to be 

encouraged. and given recognition in the evaluation of the candidate’s

qualifications. They should be given the same weight in the evaluation of the 

candidate’s qualifications during Academic Personnel actions as any other 

contributions in these areas. These contributions to diversity and equal 

opportunity can take a variety of forms including efforts to advance research, 

teaching, equitable access to education, and public service that addresses the 

needs of California’s diverse population., or research in a scholar’s area of 

expertise that highlights inequalities.  Mentoring and advising of diverse 

students or new faculty members are to be encouraged and given due 

recognition in the teaching or service categories of the aAcademic pPersonnel 

actions process. 

Rev. 1/1/06 5/23/14 Page 1 

51



VERSION CIRCULATED FOR SYSTEMWIDE REVIEW 
MAY – DECEMBER 2014 

PROVIDED AS BACKGROUND ONLY 

APPOINTMENT AND PROMOTION  APM - 210 
Review and Appraisal Committees DRAFT 

The criteria set forth below are intended to serve as guides for minimum 

standards in judging the candidate, not to set boundaries to exclude other 

elements of performance that may be considered. 

….. 

Rev. 1/1/06 5/23/14 Page 2 

52


	DRAFT UCM Review Under WSCUC Standards 4.18.2015.pdf
	Purpose of Worksheet
	Review Rubric
	Standard 1
	Synthesis & Reflection

	Standard 2
	Synthesis & Reflection

	Standard 3
	Synthesis & Reflection

	Standard 4
	Synthesis & Reflection


	APM210-1-dFinal3-15.pdf
	3-23-15 Final Review Cvr ltr APM - 210-1-d
	MG2Carlson_APM2101dFinalRev
	Mary Gilly                Chair of the Assembly of the Academic Senate
	Telephone: (510) 987-0711       Faculty Representative to the Regents
	Fax: (510) 763-0309       University of California
	Email: mary.gilly@ucop.edu       1111 Franklin Street, 12th Floor

	Draft-APM-210-1-d clean copy 3-17-15
	210-1 Instructions to Review Committees Which Advise on Actions Concerning Appointees in the Professor and Corresponding Series
	d. Criteria for Appointment, Promotion, and Appraisal

	Draft-APM-210-1-d redline 3-17-15
	210-1 Instructions to Review Committees Which Advise on Actions Concerning Appointees in the Professor and Corresponding Series
	d. Criteria for Appointment, Promotion, and Appraisal

	Draft-apm-210-1-d 5-23-14 3-23-15
	210-1 Instructions to Review Committees Which Advise on Actions Concerning Appointees in the Professor and Corresponding Series
	d. Criteria for Appointment, Promotion, and Appraisal
	…..





